Foundation of fair use of materials protected by **COPYright** for educational purposes

The following material has been reproduced, strictly for educational and illustrative purposes, related to the material's subject. The material is intended to be used in the University for International Cooperation's (Universidad para la Cooperación Internacional: "UCI", for its acronym in Spanish) virtual campus, exclusively for the teaching role and for the students' private studying, in the Management Skills course which is part of the academic program.

UCI wishes to state its strict adherence to the laws related to intellectual property. All digital materials that are made available for a course and for its students have educational and research purposes. The use of these materials is not intended for profit. It is understood as a special case of use for distance education purposes, in places where it does not conflict with the normal use of the document and where it does not affect the legitimate interests of any actor.

UCI does a FAIR USE of the material, based on the exceptions to copyright laws set out in the following regulations:

a- Costa Rican Legislation: Ley sobre Derechos de Autor y Derechos Conexos (Law on Copyright and Related Rights), No.6683, dated October 14th, 1982, Article 73 and Ley Sobre Procedimientos de Observancia de los Derechos de Propiedad Intelectual (Law on Procedures for Enforcement of Intellectual Property Rights), No. 8039, Article 58, which allow for the partial copying of works for educational illustration.

b- Mexican Legislation: Ley Federal de Derechos de Autor (Federal Law on Copyright), Article 147.

c- Law of the United States of America: In reference to fair use, it is contained in Article 106 of the copyright law of the United States (U.S. Copyright - Act), and establishes a free use of documents for purposes such as criticism, comments and news, reports and teaching (which includes making copies for classroom use).

d- Canadian Legislation: Copyright Act C-11, makes reference to exceptions for distance education.

e- WIPO: Within the framework of international legislation, according to the World Intellectual Property Organization (WIPO), this matter is foreseen by international treaties. Article 10(2) of the Berne Convention allows member countries to establish limitations or exceptions regarding the



possibility for legal use of literary or artistic works, by way of illustration for teaching, through publications, radio broadcasts, or sound or visual recordings.

In addition, and by UCI's indication, virtual campus students have a duty to comply with what is stated by the relevant copyright legislation in their country of residence.

Finally, at UCI we reaffirm that we do not profit from the works of third parties, we are strict about plagiarism, and we do not restrict in any way, neither our students, nor our academics and researchers, the commercial access to, or acquisition of, any documents available in the publishing market, may it be the document directly, or through scientific databases, paying themselves for the costs associated with such access or acquisition.



Free Project Management Templates

PROCUREMENT MANAGEMENT PLAN TEMPLATE

This Project Procurement Management Plan Template is free for you to copy and use on your project and within your organization. We hope that you find this template useful and welcome your comments. Public distribution of this document is only permitted from the Project Management Docs official website at: <u>www.ProjectManagementDocs.com</u>

PROCUREMENT MANAGEMENT PLAN <PROJECT NAME>

COMPANY NAME STREET ADDRESS CITY, STATE ZIP CODE

DATE

PROJECT MANAGEMENT DOCS Free Project Management Templates

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION	. 3
PROCUREMENT MANAGEMENT APPROACH	. 3
PROCUREMENT DEFINITION	. 4
TYPE OF CONTRACT TO BE USED	. 4
PROCUREMENT RISKS	. 5
PROCUREMENT RISK MANAGEMENT	. 5
Cost Determination	
STANDARDIZED PROCUREMENT DOCUMENTATION	
PROCUREMENT CONSTRAINTS	. 7
CONTRACT APPROVAL PROCESS	. 8
DECISION CRITERIA	. 9
Vendor Management	. 9
PERFORMANCE METRICS FOR PROCUREMENT ACTIVITIES	. 9
Sponsor Acceptance	11

Project Procurement Management Plan Template www.ProjectManagementDocs.com

PROJECT MANAGEMENT DOCS

Free Project Management Templates

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of the Procurement Management Plan is to define the procurement requirements for the project and how it will be managed from developing procurement documentation through contract closure. The Procurement Management Plan defines the following:

- Items to be procured with justification statements and timelines
- Type of contract to be used
- Risks associated with procurement management
- How procurement risks will be mitigated through contract performance metrics, insurance, or other means
- Determining costs and if/how they're used as evaluation criteria
- Any standardized procurement templates or documents to be used
- How multiple suppliers will be managed if applicable
- Contract approval process
- Decision criteria
- Establishing contract deliverables and deadlines
- How procurement and contracts are coordinated with project scope, budget, and schedule
- Any constraints pertaining to procurement
- Direction to sellers on baseline requirements such as contract schedules and work breakdown structures (WBSs)
- Vendor Management
- Identification of any prequalified sellers if applicable
- Performance metrics for procurement activities

This Procurement Management Plan sets the procurement framework for this project. It will serve as a guide for managing procurement throughout the life of the project and will be updated as acquisition needs change. This plan identifies and defines the items to be procured, the types of contracts to be used in support of this project, the contract approval process, and decision criteria. The importance of coordinating procurement activities, establishing firm contract deliverables, and metrics in measuring procurement activities is included. Other items included in the procurement management plan include: procurement risks and procurement risk management considerations; how costs will be determined; how standard procurement documentation will be used; and procurement constraints.

PROCUREMENT MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Procurement Management Plan should be defined enough to clearly identify the necessary steps and responsibilities for procurement from the beginning to the end of a project. The project manager must ensure that the plan facilitates the successful completion of the project and does not become an overwhelming task in itself to manage. The project manager will work with the project team, contracts/purchasing department, and other key players to manage the procurement activities.

The Project Manager will provide oversight and management for all procurement activities under this project. The Project Manager will work with the project team to identify all items to be procured for the successful completion of the project. The Project Management Office (PMO) Free Project Management Templates

Project Procurement Management Plan Template www.ProjectManagementDocs.com

will then review the procurement list prior to submitting it to the contracts and purchasing department. The contracts and purchasing department will review the procurement items, determine whether it is advantageous to make or buy the items, and begin the vendor selection, purchasing and the contracting process.

PROCUREMENT DEFINITION

The purpose of procurement definition is to describe, in specific terms, what items will be procured and under what conditions. Sometimes items which must be procured for a project can be made internally by an organization. Additionally, procurement deadlines are usually affected by the project schedule and are needed by certain times to ensure timely project completion. This section is where these items must be listed, justified, and the conditions must be set. Any important technical information should also be included. Individuals may also be listed with authority to approve purchases in addition to or in the absence of the project manager.

The following procurement items and/or services have been determined to be essential for project completion and success. The following list of items/services, justification, and timeline are pending PMO review for submission to the contracts and purchasing department:

Item/Service	em/Service Justification		
Item A; 3" x ³ / ₄ " tool	Needed for manufacturing widget type 1; we do not make this	31 July 20xx	
	item		
Item B; 4" x ¹ / ₂ " tool	Needed for building tool type 2; we make this item but do not	15 August 20xx	
	know the cost comparison vs. purchasing it		
Item C	Needed for transferring data to new operating system; we do	1 September 20xx	
	not make this item		

In addition to the above list of procurement items, the following individuals are authorized to approve purchases for the project team:

<u>Name</u>	Role
John Smith	Project Manager
Jane Doe	Lead Engineer
Bob Jones	Design Technician

TYPE OF CONTRACT TO BE USED

The purpose of this section is to describe the type of contract to be used so the contracts and purchasing department can proceed accordingly. There are many different types of contracts like firm-fixed price, time and materials (T&M), cost-reimbursable, and others. Different procurement items may also require different contract types. A well defined product may be a firm-fixed price while a product which will require a research and development effort may be a T&M contract.

All items and services to be procured for this project will be solicited under firm-fixed price contracts. The project team will work with the contracts and purchasing department to define the

Free Project Management Templates

item types, quantities, services and required delivery dates. The contracts and purchasing department will then solicit bids from various vendors in order to procure the items within the required time frame and at a reasonable cost under the firm fixed price contract once the vendor is selected. This contract will be awarded with one base year and three option years.

PROCUREMENT RISKS

The purpose of this section is to identify any potential risks associated with procurement for the project. Depending on the contract type, items or services being purchased, vendor history, or uncertainties in the project's scope, schedule, or budget, potential risks may require more detailed planning and mitigation strategies. For instance, if an organization has a close relationship to a particular vendor but there is a chance that vendor will no longer to be able to provide goods or services needed, this represents a significant risk to the project's procurement activities that must be managed.

All procurement activities carry some potential for risk which must be managed to ensure project success. While all risks will be managed in accordance with the project's risk management plan, there are specific risks which pertain specifically to procurement which must be considered:

- Unrealistic schedule and cost expectations for vendors
- Manufacturing capacity capabilities of vendors
- Conflicts with current contracts and vendor relationships
- Configuration management for upgrades and improvements of purchased technology
- Potential delays in shipping and impacts on cost and schedule
- Questionable past performance for vendors
- Potential that final product does not meet required specifications

These risks are not all-inclusive and the standard risk management process of identifying, documenting, analyzing, mitigating, and managing risks will be used.

PROCUREMENT RISK MANAGEMENT

The purpose of this section is to describe how risks related specifically to procurement activities will be managed. All projects should have an independent and thorough risk management plan. However, much like there are risks which pertain only to procurement, there are risk management considerations which may also be unique and apply only to procurement. This may include involvement of specific personnel in managing procurement risks or obtaining approval on mitigation steps from a particular management level within the organization.

As previously stated, project risks will be managed in accordance with the project's risk management plan. However, for risks related specifically to procurement, there must be additional consideration and involvement. Project procurement efforts involve external organizations and potentially affect current and future business relationships as well as internal supply chain and vendor management operations. Because of the sensitivity of these relationships and operations the project team will include the project sponsor and a designated representative from the contracting department in all project meetings and status reviews. Free Project Management Templates

Additionally, any decisions regarding procurement actions must be approved by the project sponsor or, in his absence, the Vice President of Contracts before implementation. Any issues concerning procurement actions or any newly identified risks will immediately be communicated to the project's contracting department point of contact as well as the project sponsor.

COST DETERMINATION

The purpose of this section is to describe how costs will be determined and if/how they will be used as part of the selection criteria. For procurements seeking goods and/or services from an outside vendor, costs are usually provided in response to a Request for Quote (RFQ), Request for Proposal (RFP), or a Request for Bid (RFB). Vendors submit quotes, proposals, or bids which describe the costs of the good or service in detail to aid the customer in their decision making. Costs are almost always used as part of the procurement decision criteria but may be prioritized differently depending on the organization.

For this project we will issue a Request for Proposal (RFP) in order to solicit proposals from various vendors which describe how they will meet our requirements and the cost of doing so. All proposals will include vendor support for items A, B, and C (from procurement definition paragraph) as well as the base and out-year costs. The vendors will outline how the work will be accomplished, who will perform the work, vendors' experience in providing these goods, customer testimonials, backgrounds and resumes of employees performing the work, and a line-item breakdown of all costs involved. Additionally, the vendors will be required to submit work breakdown structures (WBSs) and work schedules to show their understanding of the work to be performed and their ability to meet the project schedule.

All information must be included in each proposal as the proposals will be used as the foundation of our selection criteria. Proposals which omit solicited information or contain incomplete information will be discarded from consideration.

STANDARDIZED PROCUREMENT DOCUMENTATION

The purpose of this section is to describe what standard procurement documentation will be used as part of the procurement. For large complex projects, standardization makes work across all project process areas easier to manage. When organizations utilize standard forms, templates, and formats, there is commonality across different projects as well as different groups within the organization.

The procurement management process consists of many steps as well as ongoing management of all procurement activities and contracts. In this dynamic and sensitive environment, our goal must be to simplify procurement management by all necessary means in order to facilitate successful completion of our contracts and project. To aid in simplifying these tasks, we will use standard documentation for all steps of the procurement management process. These standard documents have been developed and revised over a period of many years in an effort to continually improve procurement efforts. They provide adequate levels of detail which allows

Free Project Management Templates

for easier comparison of proposals, more accurate pricing, more detailed responses, and more effective management of contracts and vendors.

The PMO maintains a repository on the company's shared drive which contains standard project management and procurement documentation that will be used for this project. The following standard documents will be used for project procurement activities:

- Standard Request for Proposal Template to include
 - Background
 - Proposal process and timelines
 - Proposal guidelines
 - Proposal formats and media
 - Source selection criteria
 - Pricing forms
 - Statement of work
 - Terms and Conditions
- Internal source selection evaluation forms
- Non-disclosure agreement
- Letter of intent
- Firm fixed price contract
- Procurement audit form
- Procurement performance evaluation form
- Lessons learned form

PROCUREMENT CONSTRAINTS

The purpose of this section is to describe any constraints which must be considered as part of the project's procurement management process. These constraints may be related to schedule, cost, scope, resources, technology, or buyer/seller relationships. As constraints are identified, they must be considered every step of the way as procurement activities are planned and conducted. Every effort must be made to identify all constraints prior to any project or procurement planning as constraints identified later in the project lifecycle can significantly impact the project's likelihood of success.

There are several constraints that must be considered as part of the project's procurement management plan. These constraints will be included in the RFP and communicated to all vendors in order to determine their ability to operate within these constraints. These constraints apply to several areas which include schedule, cost, scope, resources, and technology:

Schedule:

• Project schedule is not flexible and the procurement activities, contract administration, and contract fulfillment must be completed within the established project schedule.

Cost:

Free Project Management Templates

• Project budget has contingency and management reserves built in; however, these reserves may not be applied to procurement activities. Reserves are only to be used in the event of an approved change in project scope or at management's discretion.

Scope:

• All procurement activities and contract awards must support the approved project scope statement. Any procurement activities or contract awards which specify work which is not in direct support of the project's scope statement will be considered out of scope and disapproved.

Resources:

• All procurement activities must be performed and managed with current personnel. No additional personnel will be hired or re-allocated to support the procurement activities on this project.

Technology:

• Parts specifications have already been determined and will be included in the statement of work as part of the RFP. While proposals may include suggested alternative material or manufacturing processes, parts specifications must match those provided in the statement of work exactly.

CONTRACT APPROVAL PROCESS

The purpose of this section is to define the process through which contracts must be approved. This process may vary greatly from company to company but it is important to define the process within your organization and who is involved in the decision-making. Typically large purchases follow an established bidding process and follow a formal selection and approval process. Smaller purchases can be less formal and can be approved by the Project or Program Manager. This section should clearly identify the rules for all procurements within your organization.

The first step in the contract approval process is to determine what items or services will require procurement from outside vendors. This will be determined by conducting a cost analysis on products or services which can be provided internally and compared with purchase prices from vendors. Once cost analyses are complete and the list of items and services to be procured externally is finalized, the purchasing and contracts department will send out solicitations to outside vendors. Once solicitations are complete and proposals have been received by all vendors the approval process begins. The first step of this process is to conduct a review of all vendor proposals to determine which meet the criteria established by the project team and the purchasing and contracts department. Purchases less than \$x,xxx only require the approval of the Project Manager; whereas, purchases greater than \$x,xxx must be approved by the Contract Review Board. For these larger purchases the contract review board will meet to determine which contract will be accepted. The Contract Review Board consists of representatives from the project team, purchasing and contracts department, finance, and the PMO.

Free Project Management Templates

DECISION CRITERIA

The purpose of this section is to define the criteria used by the contract review board to decide on what contract(s) to award. Again, these criteria may vary between organizations but must be defined as part of the Procurement Management Plan.

The criteria for the selection and award of procurement contracts under this project will be based on the following decision criteria:

- Ability of the vendor to provide all items by the required delivery date
- Quality
- Cost
- Expected delivery date
- Comparison of outsourced cost versus in-sourcing
- Past performance

These criteria will be measured by the contracts review board and/or the Project Manager. The ultimate decision will be made based on these criteria as well as available resources.

VENDOR MANAGEMENT

The purpose of this section is to describe the roles and actions the project team and purchasing and contracts department will take to ensure that the selected vendors provide all of the products/services agreed upon and that the appropriate levels of quality are maintained.

The Project Manager is ultimately responsible for managing vendors. In order to ensure the timely delivery and high quality of products from vendors the Project Manager, or his/her designee will meet weekly with the contract and purchasing department and each vendor to discuss the progress for each procured item. The meetings can be in person or by teleconference. The purpose of these meetings will be to review all documented specifications for each product as well as to review the quality test findings. This forum will provide an opportunity to review each item's development or the service provided in order to ensure it complies with the requirements established in the project specifications. It also serves as an opportunity to ask questions or modify contracts or requirements ahead of time in order to prevent delays in delivery and schedule. The Project Manager will be responsible for scheduling this meeting on a weekly basis until all items are delivered and are determined to be acceptable.

PERFORMANCE METRICS FOR PROCUREMENT ACTIVITIES

This section describes the metrics to be used for procurement activities associated with the project. These metrics may be used to ensure the project stays on schedule regarding procurement activities. They may also be used to compile data on the performance of various vendors in order to assist with future procurement activities' vendor selection criteria.

While the purchasing and contracts department has their own internal metrics for procurement, the following metrics are established for vendor performance for this project's procurement activities. Each metric is rated on a 1-3 scale as indicated below:

Vendor	Product	On	Documentation	Development	Development	Cost	Transactional
--------	---------	----	---------------	-------------	-------------	------	---------------

PROJECT MANAGEMENT DOCS Free Project Management Templates

Project Procurement Management Plan Template www.ProjectManagementDocs.com

	Quality	Time	Quality	Costs	Time	per	Efficiency
		Delivery				Unit	
Vendor							
#1							
Vendor							
#2							

1 – Unsatisfactory

2 – Acceptable

3 - Exceptional

In addition to rating each vendor, actual values will be noted in order to build a past-performance data base for selecting vendors for future procurement activities.

PROJECT MANAGEMENT DOCS Free Project Management Templates

Project Procurement Management Plan Template www.ProjectManagementDocs.com

SPONSOR ACCEPTANCE

Approved by the Project Sponsor:

Date: _____

<Project Sponsor> <Project Sponsor Title>

This free Project Procurement Management Plan Template is brought to you by www.ProjectManagementDocs.com